
 
 
Democratic Services Section    
Legal and Civic Services Department 
Belfast City Council 
City Hall 
Belfast  
BT1 5GS 
 
 
21st October, 2022 
 
 
STANDARDS AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
Dear Alderman/Councillor, 

 

The above-named Committee will meet in in hybrid format, both in the Council Chamber 

and remotely, via Microsoft Teams, on Tuesday, 25th October, 2022 at 5.30 pm, for the 

transaction of the business noted below. 

 

You are requested to attend. 

 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
John Walsh 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
AGENDA: 
 
1. Routine Matters   
 
 (a) Apologies   

 
 (b) Minutes   

 
 (c) Declarations of Interest   

 
2. Motions   
 
 (a) Citizen's Forum for Belfast  (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 (b) Public Transport Network  (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
 (c) Abortion Services  (Pages 9 - 12) 

 
 (d) Belfast should join C40  (Pages 13 - 16) 

 
 (e) Rates Freeze  (Report to follow) 

 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 
- 2 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
STANDARDS AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 
 
 
 

Subject: Notice of Motion – Citizen’s Forum for Belfast 
 

Date: 
 
25th October, 2022 
 

Reporting Officer: Nora Largey, Interim City Solicitor 
 

Contact Officer: 
 

Jim Hanna, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

 

Restricted Reports     

Is this report restricted? Yes 
 

No 
 

If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?                                                    

After Committee Decision  
 

  

After Council Decision  
 

  

Sometime in the future  
 

  

Never  
 

  

     

 

Call-in     

 

Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                  

 

Yes 
 

No 
 

 

1.0 Purpose of Report/Summary of Main Issues 
 

1.1 To consider the Notice of Motion received for the meeting of the Council on 1st November in 

relation to a Citizen’s Forum for Belfast 

2.0 Recommendation 
 

2.1 The Committee is asked to consider the motion and agree to either adopt the motion, refer it 

for debate at the Council meeting (with or without restrictions) or reject the motion. 

 
  

 X 

 

 

 

 

X  

Page 1

Agenda Item 2a



 

3.0 Main Report 
 

 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Key Issues 
 
The Committee will be aware Standing Orders 13 (m) to (r) as agreed by the Council at its 
meeting on 4th October is as follows: 
 
 

(m) The Standards and Business Committee will have delegated authority to adopt or 
reject Notices of Motion. The Lord Mayor will indicate at the Council meeting those 
Notices of Motion that have been considered by the Standards and Business 
Committee and whether such Notices of Motion were rejected or adopted. In 
either case, the proposer only may speak on the issue at Council. 

 
(n) The Standards and Business Committee will refer all Notices of Motion directly to 

a standing committee when the matter to which the Notice of Motion refers falls 
within the remit of that committee. At Council, the Lord Mayor will indicate that the 
Notice of Motion was received and referred. There will be no speakers on such 
Notices of Motion at Council. 

 
(o) The Standards and Business Committee will refer Notices of Motion for 

consideration by full Council when the Notice of Motion relates to a strategic or 
constitutional matter. 

 
(p) The Standards and Business Committee will not have the power to amend the 

wording of any Notice of Motion that is being referred to the full Council for debate. 
 
(q) Any amendments to Notice of Motions to be proposed at the Council are to be 

furnished at least one day in advance of going to the full Council and will be 
circulated to Party Group Leaders in advance of the Council meeting. 

 
(r) In referring any matter to the full Council, the Standards and Business Committee 

may determine to restrict contributions to the debate in relation to any Notice of 
Motion to one per political party. At the Council meeting, the Lord Mayor will 
clearly indicate if the restriction applies. 

 
The following motion has been received: 
 
Citizen’s Forum for Belfast 

 

“Without prejudice to the constitutional position of the citizens of Belfast, this 
Council will establish a citizens’ forum to discuss the possibility of future 
constitutional change and the planning that will be necessary in advance of any 
referendum.  
 
The Citizen's Forum should also examine the potential benefits for the City of 
Belfast that would arise from any new constitutional arrangement. 
  
This forum will be reflective of the totality and diversity of our society. 
  
Provision for a Unity referendum is contained within the Good Friday agreement, 
and prudent planning must take place in advance of any potential referendum to 
ensure that citizen’s views are directly represented. 

Page 2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
 
3.6 
 
 

  
This Council will also write to the Taoiseach to inform him of this exercise in 
participative democracy by the citizens of Belfast and encourage the Irish 
Government to establish an All-Island Citizens Assembly which also includes the 
views of Belfast citizens.” 
 

Proposer:  Councillor Ciaran Beattie 
 
Seconder:  Councillor Ryan Murphy 
 
The motion calls upon the Council to establish a Citizen’s Forum for Belfast – can be adopted, 

referred to the Council for debate (with or without restrictions) or rejected. 

 
Financial and Resource Implications 
 
None associated with this report. 
 
Equality or Good Relations Implications 
 
None. 

4.0 Documents Attached 
 

  
None. 
 

 
 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
STANDARDS AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 
 
 
 

Subject: Notice of Motion – Public Transport Network 
 

Date: 
 
25th October, 2022 
 

Reporting Officer: Nora Largey, Interim City Solicitor 
 

Contact Officer: 
 

Jim Hanna, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

 

Restricted Reports     

Is this report restricted? Yes 
 

No 
 

If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?                                                    

After Committee Decision  
 

  

After Council Decision  
 

  

Sometime in the future  
 

  

Never  
 

  

     

 

Call-in     

 

Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                  

 

Yes 
 

No 
 

 

1.0 Purpose of Report/Summary of Main Issues 
 

1.1 To consider the Notice of Motion received for the meeting of the Council on 1st November in 

relation to Public Transport Network. 

2.0 Recommendation 
 

2.1 The Committee is asked to consider the motion and agree to either adopt the motion, refer it 

for debate at the Council meeting (with or without restrictions) or reject the motion. 

 
  

 X 

 

 

 

 

X  

Page 5

Agenda Item 2b



 

3.0 Main Report 
 

 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Key Issues 
 
The Committee will be aware Standing Orders 13 (m) to (r) as agreed by the Council at its 
meeting on 4th October is as follows: 
 
 

(m) The Standards and Business Committee will have delegated authority to adopt or 
reject Notices of Motion. The Lord Mayor will indicate at the Council meeting those 
Notices of Motion that have been considered by the Standards and Business 
Committee and whether such Notices of Motion were rejected or adopted. In 
either case, the proposer only may speak on the issue at Council. 

 
(n) The Standards and Business Committee will refer all Notices of Motion directly to 

a standing committee when the matter to which the Notice of Motion refers falls 
within the remit of that committee. At Council, the Lord Mayor will indicate that the 
Notice of Motion was received and referred. There will be no speakers on such 
Notices of Motion at Council. 

 
(o) The Standards and Business Committee will refer Notices of Motion for 

consideration by full Council when the Notice of Motion relates to a strategic or 
constitutional matter. 

 
(p) The Standards and Business Committee will not have the power to amend the 

wording of any Notice of Motion that is being referred to the full Council for debate. 
 
(q) Any amendments to Notice of Motions to be proposed at the Council are to be 

furnished at least one day in advance of going to the full Council and will be 
circulated to Party Group Leaders in advance of the Council meeting. 

 
(r) In referring any matter to the full Council, the Standards and Business Committee 

may determine to restrict contributions to the debate in relation to any Notice of 
Motion to one per political party. At the Council meeting, the Lord Mayor will 
clearly indicate if the restriction applies. 

 
The following motion has been received: 
 
Public Transport Network 

 
“That this Council reaffirms its support for the further development of the public 

transport network in the Greater Belfast area and calls upon the Department for 

Infrastructure and Translink to undertake a feasibility and cost study into the project 

known as the ‘Belfast Circle Line’, as part of the city’s vision for its continued growth 

and development.” 

 
 
Proposer:  Alderman George Dorrian 
 
Seconder:  Councillor Gareth Spratt 
 

Page 6



3.4 
 
 
 
 
 

3.5 
 
 
 
3.6 
 
 

The motion calls upon the Council to support the further development of the Public Transport 

Network – can be adopted, referred to the Council for debate (with or without restrictions) or 

rejected. 

 
Financial and Resource Implications 
 
None associated with this report. 
 
Equality or Good Relations Implications 
 
None. 

4.0 Documents Attached 
 

  
None. 
 

 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
STANDARDS AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 
 
 
 

Subject: Notice of Motion – Abortion Services 
 

Date: 
 
25th October, 2022 
 

Reporting Officer: Nora Largey, Interim City Solicitor 
 

Contact Officer: 
 

Jim Hanna, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

 

Restricted Reports     

Is this report restricted? Yes 
 

No 
 

If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?                                                    

After Committee Decision  
 

  

After Council Decision  
 

  

Sometime in the future  
 

  

Never  
 

  

     

 

Call-in     

 

Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                  

 

Yes 
 

No 
 

 

1.0 Purpose of Report/Summary of Main Issues 
 

1.1 To consider the Notice of Motion received for the meeting of the Council on 1st November in 

relation to Abortion Services. 

2.0 Recommendation 
 

2.1 The Committee is asked to consider the motion and agree to either adopt the motion, refer it 

for debate at the Council meeting (with or without restrictions) or reject the motion. 

 
  

 X 

 

 

 

 

X  

Page 9

Agenda Item 2c



 

3.0 Main Report 
 

 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Key Issues 
 
The Committee will be aware Standing Orders 13 (m) to (r) as agreed by the Council at its 
meeting on 4th October is as follows: 
 
 

(m) The Standards and Business Committee will have delegated authority to adopt or 
reject Notices of Motion. The Lord Mayor will indicate at the Council meeting those 
Notices of Motion that have been considered by the Standards and Business 
Committee and whether such Notices of Motion were rejected or adopted. In 
either case, the proposer only may speak on the issue at Council. 

 
(n) The Standards and Business Committee will refer all Notices of Motion directly to 

a standing committee when the matter to which the Notice of Motion refers falls 
within the remit of that committee. At Council, the Lord Mayor will indicate that the 
Notice of Motion was received and referred. There will be no speakers on such 
Notices of Motion at Council. 

 
(o) The Standards and Business Committee will refer Notices of Motion for 

consideration by full Council when the Notice of Motion relates to a strategic or 
constitutional matter. 

 
(p) The Standards and Business Committee will not have the power to amend the 

wording of any Notice of Motion that is being referred to the full Council for debate. 
 
(q) Any amendments to Notice of Motions to be proposed at the Council are to be 

furnished at least one day in advance of going to the full Council and will be 
circulated to Party Group Leaders in advance of the Council meeting. 

 
(r) In referring any matter to the full Council, the Standards and Business Committee 

may determine to restrict contributions to the debate in relation to any Notice of 
Motion to one per political party. At the Council meeting, the Lord Mayor will 
clearly indicate if the restriction applies. 

 
The following motion has been received: 
 
Abortion Services 

 
“This Council notes the third anniversary of the decriminalisation of abortion which was 
marked by women and other activists in Belfast City Centre. 
 
The Council also notes that services have yet to be officially commissioned despite the 
decriminalisation of abortion, and that the information provided on the Northern Trust 
website is unacceptably lacking.  
 
This Council considers this inaction to be an abject failure on behalf of the Health 
Minister Robin Swann and the wider Executive, and recognises the urgency with which 
action needs to be taken. 
 
Given the failure to provide adequate reproductive healthcare, this Council 
acknowledges both the detrimental impact on women on this city and the incredible 
work done by activists in organisations like Alliance for Choice and Project Choice, and 

Page 10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
 
3.6 
 
 

charities like BPAS and Informing Choices in raising awareness of limited abortion 
access and providing that access for women who need an abortion.  
 
Accordingly, the Council agrees to write to the Northern Trust to encourage it to provide 
more information about early medical abortion on their website, and to include the 
section on abortion on its ‘A-Z of services’ page.  
 
The Council also agrees to write to Minister Swann to express our disappointment and 
urge him to convene an emergency meeting of the Executive to officially commission 
abortion services.  
 
In the event that a prolonged period without Stormont Ministers looks likely, the Council 
finally agrees to write to the Secretary of State to act where possible to ensure abortion 
services are commissioned.” 
 

Proposer:  Councillor Fiona Ferguson 
 
Seconder:  Councillor Matt Collins 
 
The motion calls upon the Council to write to anumber of bodies in relation to abortion 

services – can be adopted, referred to the Council for debate (with or without restrictions) or 

rejected. 

 
Financial and Resource Implications 
 
None associated with this report. 
 
Equality or Good Relations Implications 
 
None. 

4.0 Documents Attached 
 

  
None. 
 

 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
STANDARDS AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 
 
 
 

Subject: Notice of Motion – Belfast should join C40 
 

Date: 
 
25th October, 2022 
 

Reporting Officer: Nora Largey, Interim City Solicitor 
 

Contact Officer: 
 

Jim Hanna, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

 

Restricted Reports     

Is this report restricted? Yes 
 

No 
 

If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?                                                    

After Committee Decision  
 

  

After Council Decision  
 

  

Sometime in the future  
 

  

Never  
 

  

     

 

Call-in     

 

Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                  

 

Yes 
 

No 
 

 

1.0 Purpose of Report/Summary of Main Issues 
 

1.1 To consider the Notice of Motion received for the meeting of the Council on 1st November in 

relation to Belfast should join C40. 

2.0 Recommendation 
 

2.1 The Committee is asked to consider the motion and agree to either adopt the motion, refer it 

for debate at the Council meeting (with or without restrictions) or reject the motion. 

 
  

 X 

 

 

 

 

X  

Page 13

Agenda Item 2d



 

3.0 Main Report 
 

 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Key Issues 
 
The Committee will be aware Standing Orders 13 (m) to (r) as agreed by the Council at its 
meeting on 4th October is as follows: 
 
 

(m) The Standards and Business Committee will have delegated authority to adopt or 
reject Notices of Motion. The Lord Mayor will indicate at the Council meeting those 
Notices of Motion that have been considered by the Standards and Business 
Committee and whether such Notices of Motion were rejected or adopted. In 
either case, the proposer only may speak on the issue at Council. 

 
(n) The Standards and Business Committee will refer all Notices of Motion directly to 

a standing committee when the matter to which the Notice of Motion refers falls 
within the remit of that committee. At Council, the Lord Mayor will indicate that the 
Notice of Motion was received and referred. There will be no speakers on such 
Notices of Motion at Council. 

 
(o) The Standards and Business Committee will refer Notices of Motion for 

consideration by full Council when the Notice of Motion relates to a strategic or 
constitutional matter. 

 
(p) The Standards and Business Committee will not have the power to amend the 

wording of any Notice of Motion that is being referred to the full Council for debate. 
 
(q) Any amendments to Notice of Motions to be proposed at the Council are to be 

furnished at least one day in advance of going to the full Council and will be 
circulated to Party Group Leaders in advance of the Council meeting. 

 
(r) In referring any matter to the full Council, the Standards and Business Committee 

may determine to restrict contributions to the debate in relation to any Notice of 
Motion to one per political party. At the Council meeting, the Lord Mayor will 
clearly indicate if the restriction applies. 

 
The following motion has been received: 
 
Belfast Should Join C40 

 
“Belfast City Council notes that the C40 World Mayors Summit occurred between 19 
– 21 October 2022 in Buenos Aires. 
 
The Council notes that the C40 World Mayors Summit brings together the mayors of 
global and regional cities, alongside business leaders, philanthropists, campaigners, 
youth leaders, scientists and residents, to share bold ideas, showcase innovative 
solutions and stand together to create a sustainable, prosperous and equitable future. 
This Council notes that it already supports the work of the Belfast Climate Commission 
and is part of the Place-based Climate Action Network (‘PCAN’). 
 
The Council also notes that the C40 Leadership Standards are as follows: 
 
• Plan: City has adopted a resilient and inclusive climate action plan aligned 

with the 1.5˚C ambition of the Paris Agreement, and updates it regularly; 

Page 14



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
 
3.6 
 
 

 
• Deliver: In 2024, city remains on track to deliver its climate action plan, 

contributing to increased resilience, equitable outcomes and halving C40’s 
overall emissions by 2030; 

 
• Mainstream: City uses the necessary financial, regulatory and other tools at 

their disposal to address the climate crisis and mainstreams their equitable 
climate targets into the most impactful city decision-making processes; 

 
• Innovate: City innovates and starts taking inclusive and resilient action to 

address emissions beyond the direct control of the city government, such as 
associated with goods and services consumed in their city; 

 
• Lead: Mayor and the city demonstrate global climate leadership and inspire 

others to act in support of the Paris Agreement. 
 
These Leadership Standards will guide C40’s collective action until at least 2024. 
 
The Council considers that this PCAN work would be enhanced by Belfast City Council 
applying to join C40 as an ‘Innovator’.  An ‘Innovator’ city is one that shows exceptional 
climate leadership at the global level, but do not meet the population/size criteria of a 
‘Megacity.’ 
  
Accordingly, the Council resolves to recommend to the Lord Mayor of Belfast that she 
apply on behalf of Belfast City Council and her office to join the C40 network and, in 
any event, adhering to the C40’s leadership standards.” 
 

Proposer:  Councillor Matt Collins 
 
Seconder:  Councillor Fiona Ferguson 
 
The motion calls upon the Council to join the C40 network - can be adopted, referred to the 

Council for debate (with or without restrictions) or rejected. 

 
Financial and Resource Implications 
 
None associated with this report. 
 
Equality or Good Relations Implications 
 
None. 

4.0 Documents Attached 
 

  
None. 
 

 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2a Citizen's Forum for Belfast
	2b Public Transport Network
	2c Abortion Services
	2d Belfast should join C40

